
INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Balance sheet as at  31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
 As at  As at  As at 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

ASSETS

1 Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 4.03                    1.32                    0.02                    
Receivables

(i) Trade receivables 5 0.01                    -                     0.01                    
Loans 6 198.90                139.91                1.94                    
Investments 7 -                     7.05                    0.01                    
Other financial assets 8 5.19                    0.17                    0.15                    

Total financial assets 208.13                 148.45                 2.13                    

2 Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 9 0.01                    0.01                    0.00                    
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 -                     0.36                    0.00                    
Property, plant and equipment 10(a) 2.60                    -                     -                     
Other intangibles assets 10(b) 2.89                    -                     -                     
Right of use assets (Refer note- 30) 10(c) 3.18                    -                     -                     
Other non-financial assets 11 0.86                    0.03                    0.00                    

Total non-financial assets 9.54                    0.40                    0.00                    

Total Assets 217.67                 148.85                 2.13                    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
3 Financial liabilities

Payables
Trade payables 12

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.04                    -                     -                     

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.50                    0.07                    -                     

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 13 83.30                  -                     -                     
Other financial liabilities (including lease liability) 14 6.43                    32.51                  0.00                    

Total financial liabilities 90.27                  32.58                  0.00                    

4 Non-financials liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 15 2.21                    0.08                    -                     
Provisions 16 0.59                    0.01                    -                     
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 0.10                    -                     -                     
Other non-financial liabilities 18 0.54                    0.22                    0.00                    

Total non-financial liabilities 3.44                    0.31                    0.00                    

5 EQUITY
Equity share capital 19 41.80                  41.80                  1.80                    
Other equity 20 82.16                  74.16                  0.33                    
Total equity 123.96                 115.96                 2.13                    

Total Liabilities and Equity 217.67                 148.85                 2.13                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of  financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 005975N

Vikas Aggarwal Prem Prakash Mirdha Vijay Kumar Agrawal                
Partner Director Whole Time Director

(DIN : 01352748) (DIN : 08329352 )

Place : Gurugram Manish Khandelwal Chandra Shekher Joshi
Date : 11 July 2020 Chief Financial Officer                Company Secretary

Notes Particulars



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Statement of  profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Income
Revenue from operations
Interest income 21 32.66                   0.26                     
Dividend income 22 0.11                     0.05                     
Fees 23 3.19                     0.01                     
Net gain on derecognition on financial instruments under amortised cost category 24 3.11                     -                       

39.07                   0.32                     
Other income 25 0.52                     0.02                     
Total income 39.59                   0.34                     

Expenses
Finance costs 26 10.84                   0.00                     
Impairment on financial instruments 27 0.15                     0.35                     
Employee benefits expense 28 13.64                   0.66                     
Depreciation and amortisation 10 1.26                     -                       
Other expenses 29 2.98                     0.38                     
Total expenses 28.87                   1.39                     

Profit/(loss) before tax 10.72                   (1.05)                   

Tax expense: 17
Current tax (including earlier years) 2.26                     0.07                     
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 0.46                     (0.36)                   
Profit/(loss) for the year  8.00                     (0.76)                   

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefits plans (0.00)                   -                       
(ii) Income tax effect on above- 0.00                     -                       

Total other comprehensive income, (net of tax) (0.00)                   -                       

Total comprehensive income for the year 8.00                     (0.76)                   

Earnings per share: 30
Basic (₹) 1.91                     (2.12)                   
Diluted (₹) 1.91                     (2.12)                   
Face value per equity share (₹) 10.00                   10.00                   
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 005975N

Vikas Aggarwal Prem Prakash Mirdha Vijay Kumar Agrawal                
Partner Director Whole Time Director

(DIN : 01352748) (DIN : 08329352 )

Place : Gurugram Manish Khandelwal Chandra Shekher Joshi
Date : 11 July 2020 Chief Financial Officer                Company Secretary

Particulars Notes



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Numbers Amount
As at 01 April 2018 1797400 1.80                    
Add: Issue of equity share capital 40000000 40.00                  
As at 31 March 2019 41797400 41.80                  
Add: Issue of equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2020 41797400 41.80                  

B) Other Equity (refer note 20)

Balance as at 01 April 2018 0.02                    0.24                    -                     0.07                    -                       0.33                    
Loss for the year -                     -                     -                     (0.76)                   -                       (0.76)                   
Premium on issue of equity shares capital -                     75.00                  -                     -                     -                       75.00                  
Share issue Expenses -                     (0.41)                   -                     -                     -                       (0.41)                   
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.02                   74.83                 -                     (0.69)                  -                      74.16                  
Profit for the year -                     -                     -                     8.00                    -                       8.00                    
Impairment Reserve(refer note - for details) -                     -                     0.04                    (0.04)                   -                       -                     
Other comprehensive income for the year :
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans net of tax -                     -                     -                     -                     0.00                     0.00                    
Total Comprehensive income for the year -                     -                     -                     -                     0.00                    0.00                   
Transfer to Special Reserve @ 20% U/s 45IC 1.60                    (1.60)                   -                       -                     
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1.62                   74.83                 0.04                   5.67                   0.00                    82.16                  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of  financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 005975N

Vikas Aggarwal Prem Prakash Mirdha Vijay Kumar Agrawal                
Partner Director Whole Time Director

(DIN : 01352748) [DIN : 08329352]

Place : Gurugram Manish Khandelwal Chandra Shekher Joshi
Date : 11 July 2020 Chief Financial Officer                Company Secretary
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INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Cash flow statement for the year ended  31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
Particulars  Year ended  Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities : 
Profit/(loss) before tax 10.72                   (1.05)                   
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization of PPE and right of use assets 1.26                     -                      
Loss on sale of investment -                      0.00                     
Provision for impairment on financial assets 0.15                     0.35                     
Provision for employee benefits 0.58                     0.01                     
Liabilities no longer required written back (0.49)                   -                      
Finance cost 10.83                   0.00                     
Interest income (32.66)                  (0.26)                   
Net gain on derecognition on assigned loans (3.11)                   -                      
Income from mutual funds (0.13)                   (0.07)                   
Interest on income tax refund -                      (0.00)                   
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (12.85)                 (1.02)                   
Adjustments for working capital charges
 - Trade receivable, other financial and non financial assets (0.90)                   (0.01)                   
 - (Increase) in loans (59.13)                  (138.22)                
 - Trade payables, other financial and non financial liabilities (28.43)                  32.81                   
Cash (used in) operations (101.31)               (106.44)               
Net interest income received 31.03                   0.13                     
Finance cost paid (10.40)                  -                      
Income taxes paid (Net) (0.25)                   0.00                     
Net cash (used in) operating activities (80.93)                (106.31)               

B. Cash flow from investing activities : 
Investment in mutual funds (682.81)                (15,805.00)           
Proceeds from redemption of investments 689.86                 15,797.95            

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment's and intangible assets, including capital 
advances

(6.04)                   -                      

Sale of investment -                      0.00                     
Gain on sale of mutual fund 0.02                     0.02                     
Dividend received on mutual fund 0.11                     0.05                     
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 1.14                    (6.98)                  

C. Cash flow from financing activities : 
Proceeds from issue of shares -                      115.00                 
Share issue expenses -                      (0.41)                   
Proceeds from borrowings 259.80                 -                      
Repayment of borrowings (176.50)                -                      
Repayment of lease liability (0.80)                   -                      
Net cash flow from financing activities 82.50                  114.59                 

D. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2.71                     1.30                     
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.32                     0.02                     
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 4.03                    1.32                    

G. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement :
Cash and cash equivalents:- (refer note 4)
Cash on hand -                      0.00                     
Balance with banks 4.03                     1.32                     

4.03                    1.32                    

Note:-
1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the IND AS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”.
2. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicable.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of  financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 005975N

Vikas Aggarwal Prem Prakash Mirdha Vijay Kumar Agrawal                
Partner Director Whole Time Director

(DIN : 01352748) (DIN : 08329352 )

Place : Gurugram Manish Khandelwal Chandra Shekher Joshi
Date : 11 July 2020 Chief Financial Officer                Company Secretary



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED  

[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited] 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

1. Corporate information 

 
Indiabulls Rural Finance Private Limited (formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited) is non-deposit taking, non-banking 
financial company (‘NBFC’) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) with effect from 05 February 2004, with Registration No. B-
13.01706. The Company is engaged in providing range of financial services including lending and access to credit to eclectic customers with a 
bias to operate in financial inclusion space. The registered office of the company is IFC, Tower-1, 10th Floor, CS 612/613, S.B. Marg, Mumbai 
– 400013, India. 

SORIL Infra Resources Limited (Holding Company) acquired 100% Shareholding on 25 January 2019 vide RBI approval DNBS.CMD.NO. 
829/13.12.037/2018-19 dated 12 December 2018. 

 
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 July 2020. 
 

2. Basis of  preparation of financial statements 
 
a) Statement of compliance  

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended 
from time to time. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the period presented in this financial statements. 
 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance 
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 are the first which the 
Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS (see note XX for explanation for transition to Ind AS). For the purpose of 
comparatives, financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2018 are also prepared 
under Ind AS. 

The Company financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)(₹) and The figures have been rounded off to the nearest crore 
of rupees upto two decimal places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than ₹ 50,000, except when otherwise 
indicated. 

 

b) Basis of preparation 

The Company financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. Further, the Company financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial 
assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
explained in relevant accounting policies. 
 
c) Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, related disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.  
 
Significant management judgements 
 
Provisions  
At each balance sheet date on the basis of management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the 
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this 
judgement. 

 
Recognition of deferred tax assets 

 
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company future taxable 
income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 

 
Business model assumption 
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (“Solely Payments of Principal and Interest”) and 
the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Company of financial assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence 
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the 
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets 
measured at amortised cost that are de-recognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the 
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company continuous 
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not 
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 
 
Impairment loss on financial assets 



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED  

[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited] 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets except assets valued at FVTPL, requires judgement, in 
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and 
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are  driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result 
in different level of allowances. 
• The Company expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions 

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting 
judgements and estimates include: 

• The Company model, which assigns Probability of Defaults (PDs) 
• The Company criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should 

be measured on a Long Term ECL (LTECL) basis 
• Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and the effect on PDs, Exposure at 

Default (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs) 
• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the 

ECL models. 
 
Effective interest rate method 
The Company EIR methodology recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of 
return over the expected behavioural life of loans and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various 
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the 
expected behaviour and life-cycle of  the instruments, as well expected changes to the Company base rate and other fee 
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument. 
 
Impairment of non-Financial assets 
The Company uses judgment for impairment testing at the end of each reporting period.  

 
Significant estimates 
 
Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities 
The cost of defined benefit pension plans is determined by using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and standard rates of inflation. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and 
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 
each reporting date.  

 
Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets   
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected 
utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of 
assets. 

 
Fair value measurement of financial instrument 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices 
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs 
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  

  

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The company financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised 
below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the company financial statements. 

 

3.1. Financial instruments 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 
 

I. Financial assets 

 

i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date 
that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are 
recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition 
depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets are 
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
 



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED  

[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited] 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of both: 

a) business model for managing the financial assets, and 
b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

 
A Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

(i) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows, and 

(ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if both of the following conditions 
are met: 

(i) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets, and 

(ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
A Financial Asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) unless it is measured at 
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI. 
 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on 
the classification of the financial assets. 
 
Equity instruments 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.  The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- 
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 
 
If  the  Company  decides  to  classify  an  equity  instrument  as  at  FVTOCI,  then  all  fair  value  changes  on  the  
instrument, excluding  dividends,  are  recognized  in  the  OCI.  There  is  no  recycling  of  the  amounts  from  OCI  to  P&L,  
even  on  sale  of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 
 

II. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments 

Classification as Debt or Equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
 
Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
Financial liabilities 

i) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability. 

 

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, as subsequently measured, at amortised cost. 
Financial liabilities, other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expenses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Loans and Borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
 
 



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED  

[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited] 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 
 
The  Company  doesn’t  reclassify  its  financial  assets  subsequent  to  their  initial  recognition,  apart  from  the  exceptional 
circumstances  in  which  the  Company  acquires,  disposes  of,  or  terminates  a  business  line.  Financial liabilities are never 
reclassified. 
 
De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial Assets 
A  financial  asset  (or,  where  applicable,  a  part  of  a  financial  asset  or  part  of  a  group  of  similar  financial  assets)  is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-recognised the 
financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de recognition. 
 
The Company has transferred the financial asset if and only if, either: 
• It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset 
Or 
• It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement 
 
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 
 
• The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset 
Or 
• The  Company  has  neither  transferred  nor  retained  substantially  all  the  risks  and  rewards  of  the  asset,  but  has 
transferred control of the asset. 
 
The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its  
entirety  to  an  unrelated  third  party  and  is  able  to  exercise  that  ability  unilaterally  and  without  imposing  additional 
restrictions on the transfer. 
 
When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the 
asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the 
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 
 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Company could be required to pay. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. In 
case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments- for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track 
changes in credit risk of trade receivable. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a 
provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience. At every reporting date, the historically observed default are 
observed and changes in the forward looking estimates are done. 
 
Overview of the ECL principles for Loan assets  
The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at 
FVTPL,  together  with  loan  commitments  and  financial  guarantee  contracts,  (in  this  section  all  referred  to  as  ‘financial 
instruments’). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IND AS 109. 
 
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or 
LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based  on  
the  12  months’  expected  credit  loss .   The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
Both  LTECLs  and  12mECLs  are  calculated  on  individual and collective  basis,  depending  on  the  nature  of  the  
underlying  portfolio  of financial instruments. The  Company  has  established  a  policy  to  perform  an  assessment,  at  the  
end  of  each  reporting  period,  of  whether  a financial  instrument’s  credit  risk  has  increased  significantly  since  initial  
recognition. 
 
Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3, as described below: 
 
 Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include 
cases where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3. 
 



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED  

[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited] 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

 Stage 2: When  a  loan  has  shown  a  significant  increase  in  credit  risk  since  origination,  the  Company  records  an 
allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include cases where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been 
reclassified from Stage 3. 
 
 Stage 3:  Loans considered credit-impaired. Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. 

 
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below: 
 
 Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a 
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Company calculates the 12mECL allowance 
based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month 
default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD. 
 
 Stage  2:  When  a  loan  has  shown  a  significant  increase  in  credit  risk  since  origination,  the  Company  records  an 
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the 
lifetime of the instrument. 
 
 Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The 
method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. 
 
Forward looking information 
While estimating the expected credit losses, Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and 
market it operates in. On a periodic basis, Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like 
GDP, Property Price Index, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the 
estimate of PD, LGD determined by Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by 
Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect 
such macro-economic trends reasonably. 
 
Write-offs 
Financial  assets  are  written  off  either  partially  or  in  their  entirety  only  when  the  Company  has  stopped  pursuing  the 
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an  
addition  to  the  allowance  that  is  then  applied  against  the  gross  carrying  amount.  Any subsequent recoveries are credited 
to profit and loss account. 
 

3.2. Fair value Measurement 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured and disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
b) Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 

as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 
c) Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the company financial statements on a recurring basis, Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
 

3.3. Revenue Recognition 

 

i. Interest income, expenses and other charges 
 Interest income 
Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest 
method (EIR). The effective interest method calculates the amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest 
income. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The 
calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any 
fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit 
losses. 
 
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired 
assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, Company calculates the interest to the 
extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, Company reverts to calculating interest income. 
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 Interest expense 
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized 
over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other 
expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability. 

 

 Other charges & other interest  
Additional interest is recognized when the interest is due and charged to the borrower.  

 

ii. Others 
 Profit on sale of fixed assets is recognized on the date the recipient obtains control of the sold asset. 
 Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. 
 Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established, at the balance sheet date. 
 Profit on sale of investment is recognized on the date of its sale and is computed as excess of sale proceeds over its carrying 

amount as on date of sale. 
 

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
Recognition and measurement 
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
The cost of improvements to assets, if recognition criteria are met, has been capitalised. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property, plant and equipment 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment) is included in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss when property, plant and equipment are derecognised. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted as a separate component is derecognised, when replaced or when the property, plant and equipment to which the component 
relates gets derecognised. 
 
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and restoring 
the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. 

 
Subsequent costs 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of incurrence. 

 
Capital work-in-progress 
Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values and is charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

 
Depreciation on all tangible assets is provided on straight line method at the rates computed on the basis of useful life provided in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year. 
 
Impairment 
Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or change in circumstances indicated at their carrying 
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less 
cost to sell and the value-in-use) is  determined on an individual’s asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flow that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, there recoverable amount determined for the Cash Generating unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs.  An Impairment loss to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which 
carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. The impairment loss is reversed in the statement of 
profit and loss if there has been change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount provide that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined (net of any accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 
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3.5. Intangible Assets: 

 
Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to 
the asset will flow to Company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of 
acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses, if any. 

 
Gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an other intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the other intangible asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
 
Subsequent costs 
Subsequent costs is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All 
other expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as incurred. 
 
Amortisation 
Intangible assets are amortized over the expected useful life from the date the assets are available for use, as mentioned below: 
Description of asset  : Estimated life  
Computer software  : 4 years 
Leasehold   : 09 years (as per terms of agreement) 

 

3.6.  Leases 
Effective from 01 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases and 
other interpretations. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and has accordingly not restated 
the comparative information. The Company at the inception of a contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.  
 
 Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of use asset representing its 
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The Company has selectively 
elected not to recognise right-of-use of assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and 
leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis 
over the lease term. There are no finance lease contracts in Company.. For contracts entered into before 01 April 2019, the 
determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the 
lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
 
  As a lessee  
 
 The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently 
depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life or the end of the 
lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, and the Company's incremental 
borrowing rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is 
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is 
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already 
reduced to zero. On the Balance Sheet, right-of-use assets have been presented separately and lease liabilities have been reported as   
other financial liabilities. 

 

3.7. Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 
Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the 
reporting period and are measured at an undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

 
Post-employment benefit plans 
 
Defined contribution plans 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such 
benefits. 

 
Defined benefit plans- Gratuity 
 
Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by 
reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans is the 
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present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the 
assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other 
comprehensive income. 

 
Other long-term employee benefits- Compensated absences 

The benefits under compensated expenses are accounted as other long-term employee benefits. Company's net obligation in respect 
of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the 
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
period in which they arise. 

 

3.8. Income tax 

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax 
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be 
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date 

 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on Company’s 
forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any 
unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  

 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax 
relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit or Loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). 

 

3.9. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The 
chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors of Company who makes strategic decisions and is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. 

 

3.10. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount 
of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.  

 
Product warranties: Company gives warranties on certain products and services, undertaking to repair / replace products, which fail to 
perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made against warranties represents the amount of the expected cost of 
meeting such obligation on account of repair / replacement. The timing of outflows is expected to be within a period of two years from 
the date of balance sheet. 

 
Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

 
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require 
an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 
 

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is 
recognized. 

 

3.11. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to the statement of 
Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate(EIR) method. Borrowing costs shall also include exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
 
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such 
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
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3.12. Earnings Per Equity Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting 
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue or any other share transactions that changes 
the number of shares outstanding. 

 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

3.13. Cash and cash equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks, short term demand deposits with original maturity upto three 
months and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

3.14. Share issue Expenses 

Share issue expenses, net of tax, are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account, as permissible under Section 52(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent of balance available and thereafter, the balance portion is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, as incurred.  
 

3.15. Recent accounting pronouncements   

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification 
which would have been applicable from 1 April, 2020.  
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As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Note  - 4
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand                         -                        0.00                      0.01 
Balances with banks: 

In current accounts                      4.03                      1.32                      0.01 
4.03                     1.32                     0.02                     

Note  - 5
Trade Receivable
Unsecured considered good 0.01                     -                       0.01                     
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -                       -                       -                       
Receivables – credit impaired -                       -                       -                       

0.01                     -                      0.01                     

Note  - 6
Loans* (at amortized cost)

a) Term Loans (net of assignment)                  199.40                  140.26                      1.95 
Less : Impairment loss allowance                      0.50                      0.35 0.01                     
Total (A) Net                  198.90                   139.91                      1.94 

Secured by tangible assets                  179.49                  114.08                         -   
Unsecured                    19.91                    26.18                      1.95 
Less: Impairment loss allowance                      0.50                      0.35                      0.01 
Total (B) Net                  198.90                   139.91                      1.94 
*All the loans are disbursed to India.

Term loans (net of assignment)
Total term loans                  235.46                  139.91                      1.94 
Less : loans assigned                    36.56                         -   -                      

                 198.90                   139.91                      1.94 

b)

c)  Secured loans and other credit facilities given to customers are secured/partly secured by :
a) Equitable mortgage of property and / or
b) Pledge of shares / debentures, units, other securities, assignment of life insurance policies and / or
c) Hypothecation of assets and /or
d) Company guarantees and / or
e) Personal guarantee and /or
f) Negative lien and / or undertaking to create a security.

d)

e)

f)

a) Loan to value
b) Type of collateral
c) Cash-flow and income assessment of the borrower
d) Interest and debt service cover
e) Repayment track record of the borrower
f) Vintage i.e. months on books and number of paid EMIs
g) Project progress in case of project finance

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Company. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of 
the counterparties

 Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers :
The company's manages credit by an Internal Rating Model.  The model grades loans on a four-point grading scale, and incorporates both quantitative as well as qualitative information on the 
loans and the borrowers to analyze the  credit behavior. Some of the factors that the internal risk based model is calibrated to are following:

In addition to information specific to the borrower and the performance of the loan, the model may also utilize supplemental external information that could affect the borrower’s behavior. 
The model is also calibrated to incorporate external inputs such as GDP growth rate, unemployment rate and factors specific to the sector/industry of the borrower.

Impairment loss allowance includes ₹ 0.04 Cr. on account of provision overlay @ 5% on past due account granted under moratorium as per RBI circular, RBI/2019-20/220
DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 17 April 2020.

The Company has assigned a pool of certain loans amounting to ₹ 41.51 Cr. (Previous year ₹ Nil Cr.) by way of a direct assignment transaction. These loan assets have been de-recognized from
the loan portfolio of the Company as the sale of loan assets is an absolute assignment and transfer on a ‘no-recourse’ basis. The Company continues to act as a servicer to the assignment
transaction on behalf of assignee. In terms of the assignment agreement, the Company pays to assignee, on a monthly basis, the pro-rata collection amounts
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The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk

As at 31 March 2020
Risk categorization Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very good                  180.32                         -                           -                    180.32 
Good                    20.32                         -                           -                      20.32 
Average                      0.27                      0.26                         -                        0.53 
Non-performing                         -                           -   0.03                                          0.03 

                 200.91                      0.26                      0.03                  201.20 

As at 31 March 2019
Risk categorization Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very good                  128.72                         -                           -                    128.72 
Good                    12.21                         -                           -                      12.21 
Average                      0.36                         -                           -                        0.36 
Non-performing                                                     -                           -                               

                  141.29                         -                           -                     141.29 

As at 01 April 2018
Risk categorization Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very good                      1.95                         -                           -                        1.95 
Good                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Average                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Non-performing                         -                           -                           -                           -   

                     1.95                         -                           -                        1.95 

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances in relation to loans & advances is, as follows
As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance opening balance                      0.35                         -                           -                        0.35 
ECL on assets added/provision created                      0.29                         -                           -                        0.29 
Assets derecognized or repaid (including write offs/ written back) (0.14)                                            -                           -   (0.14)                    
Transfer from stage 1 (0.02)                                         0.01                      0.01                         -   
Transfer from stage 2                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 3                         -                           -                           -                           -   
ECL allowance closing balance                      0.48                      0.01                      0.01                      0.50 

As at 31 March 2019
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance opening balance                      0.01                         -                           -                        0.01 
ECL on assets added/provision created                      0.34                         -                           -                        0.34 
Assets derecognized or repaid (including write offs/ written back)                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 1                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 2                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 3                         -                           -                           -                           -   
ECL allowance closing balance                      0.35                         -                           -                        0.35 

As at 01 April 2018
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance opening balance                         -                           -                           -                           -   
ECL on assets added/provision created                      0.01                         -                           -                        0.01 
Assets derecognized or repaid (including write offs/ written back)                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 1                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 2                         -                           -                           -                           -   
Transfer from stage 3                         -                           -                           -                           -   
ECL allowance closing balance                      0.01                         -                           -                        0.01 

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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g) Impairment assessment

i) Probability of default

ii) Internal rating model and PD Estimation process
The company’s internal rating and PD estimation process:

iii) Exposure at default

iv) Loss given default

v) Significant increase in credit risk

vi) Company’s loans measured on a collective basis

For Stage 3 loans ECL is calculated on an individual borrower basis.

i) Inputs to the ECL model for forward looking economic scenarios

j) Collateral

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in the notes below. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the company. Considering that PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to 
estimate EAD.

The Company uses peer data ( as co. has only one year  of Portfolio seasoning)  for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are 
discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the NPV of the recoveries.

IBRFPL’s Analytics Department has designed and operates its Internal Rating Model that factors in both quantitative as well as qualitative information on the loans and the borrowers. The
model uses historical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller
homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit behavior. The PDs are computed for these homogenous portfolio segments. The PDs are also used for Ind-AS 109 ECL calculations and
the Ind AS 109 Stage classification of the exposure.The Internal Rating Model is dynamic and is calibrated periodically; the choice of parameters and division into smaller homogenous
portfolios is thus also dynamic.

The internal rating model evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The rating model also assesses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the previously assigned risk grade
One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

For stages 1 and 2 the internal rating model analyzes historical empirical data, determines parameters that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the basis of a
combination of these parameters into smaller homogeneous portfolios. The loss estimation for these pools is hence done on a collective basis. In addition to information specific to the
borrower and the performance of the loan, the model may also utilize supplemental external information that could affect the borrower’s behavior. The model is also calibrated to incorporate
external inputs such as GDP growth rate, unemployment rate and factors specific to the sector/industry of the borrower.

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognized because of collateral at 31 March 2020. 

The Company considers a loans as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments.
The Company may also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse
market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the company also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating
the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

It is the company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an
asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been a significant reduction in credit risk.

The internal rating model also provides for calibration to reflect changes in macroeconomic parameters and industry specific factors.

The company is in the business of extending secured loans mainly backed by mortgage of property (residential or commercial).

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through on-rolls collection executives,
along with legal means to recover due loan repayments. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the provisions of the
SARFAESI Act 2002. Re-possessed property is disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAESI act to recover outstanding debt.

In addition to the above mentioned collateral, the Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralization on other assets of the borrower, share
pledge, guarantees of parent/holding companies, personal guarantees of promoters/proprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank
accounts etc.
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Note  - 7
Investments*

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
At fair value At fair value At fair value

Particulars

Mutual Funds -                       7.05                     -                       

Equity Share- Held for trading -                       -                       0.01                     
Total gross -                       7.05                     0.01                     
Less : Impairment loss allowance -                       -                       -                       
Total Net                         -                        7.05                      0.01 

Note  - 8
Other financial assets
Security deposit 0.27                     0.05                     -                       
EIS receivables* 2.87                     -                       -                       

Interest accrued but not due on loans 2.05                     0.12                     0.15                     
5.19                     0.17                     0.15                     

Note  - 9
Current tax assets (net)
TDS deducted at source                      0.01                      0.01                      0.00 

0.01                     0.01                     0.00                     

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Through
profit or

loss

* Under Ind AS, with respect to Assignment deals, Company has created an Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable, with corresponding credit to Statement of Profit and loss for the year,
which has been computed by discounting EIS to present value.

Through
profit or

loss

Through
profit or

loss

*All Investment made in India and Investment is recognized at book value or market value whichever is lower as per master direction of RBI.



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
Note - 10
Property, plant and equipment's and intangible assets

Particulars Leasehold 
Improvement

Furniture 
and fixtures

Computers Office 
equipment

Total Computer 
software's

Total 

Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2017 -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Additions -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 01 April 2018 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Additions -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Additions 1.28                 0.29              0.69            0.67                 2.93                  3.10                  3.10               
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1.28                 0.29              0.69            0.67                 2.93                  3.10                  3.10               

Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2017 -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Charged for the year -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 01 April 2018 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Charged for the year -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Charged for the year 0.09                 0.02              0.14            0.08                 0.33                  0.21                  0.21               
Deletion/Adjustment -                   -                -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.09                 0.02              0.14            0.08                 0.33                  0.21                  0.21               

Net carrying amount  as at 01 April 2018 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Net carrying amount  as at 31 March 2019 -                   -               -              -                   -                   -                    -                 
Net carrying amount  as at 31 March 2020 1.19                  0.27              0.55            0.59                 2.60                  2.89                  2.89               

Note - 10 (c)
Right-of-use assets (Refer note- 30)
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
Right-of-use assets 3.90                  -                    -                 
Charged for the year 0.72                  -                    -                 
Total 3.18                  -                   -                

Property, plant and equipment's (a) Other intangibles (b)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Note  - 11
Other non-financials assets
Prepaid expenses 0.32                     -                                               -   

Imprest to employees 0.01                     -                                               -   

Advance to vendor 0.12                     0.02                     -                       
Balance with govt. authorities 0.41                     0.01                     0.00                     

0.86                     0.03                     0.00                     

* Advance to vendor include Capital advance of ₹ 0.02

Note  - 12
Payable

Trade payable
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.04                     -                       -                       

0.50                     0.07                     -                       
0.54                     0.07                     -                      

* Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act, 2006") as at :-

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

0.04                     Nil Nil

-                       Nil Nil

-                       Nil Nil

0.04                     Nil Nil

-                       Nil Nil

Note  - 13
Borrowings (at amortized cost)*
Loans from others 83.30                   -                       -                       

83.30                   -                      -                      

a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
31 March 2020 Cash flows Others* 31 March 2020

Borrowings*                         -                      83.30                         -   83.30                   

Particulars Interest rate Tenure 31 March 2020
1. Borrowings from Soril Infra Resources 9% 83.30                   

Note  - 14
Other financials Liabilities
Lease liability (Refer note- 30) 3.29                     -                       -                       
Interest accrued but not due on loan assignment 0.29                     
Temporary overdrawn balance as per books -                       31.72                   -                       
Employee benefit payable 0.25                     0.06                     -                       
Due to assignees towards collections in derecognised assets 2.25                     -                       -                       
Other payables 0.35                     0.73                     0.00                     

6.43                     32.51                   0.00                     

Note  - 15
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for income tax 2.21                     0.08                     -                       

2.21                     0.08                     -                      

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars

at the end of 7 
years

d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 

Company.

*All borrowings are from India and other than debt securities

b) Terms of repayment of long term borrowings outstanding as at 31 March 2020

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act;

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

*Unsecured term loans from Soril Infra Resources Ltd. carry Interest rate of 9%. The loans are having tenure of 7 years.

e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Note  - 16
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for compensated absences (Refer note- 28) 0.36                     0.01                     -                       
Provision for gratuity (Refer note- 28) 0.23                     0.00                     -                       

0.59                     0.01                     -                      

Note  - 17
Income taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 :

Profit or loss section
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax 2.11                     0.07                     
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 0.15                     -                       
Deferred tax 0.46                     (0.36)                    
Total tax charge 2.72                    (0.29)                   

Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Net (gain) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans -                      

Income tax charged to OCI 0.00                     -                      

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2020:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 10.72                   (1.05)                    

Accounting profit before income tax 10.72                  (1.05)                   

Tax at statutory income tax rate of 25.17%(Previous year 26%) 2.70                     (0.28)                    

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed (0.08)                    -                      

Tax impact of exempted income (0.03)                    (0.01)                    

Tax impact of earlier year items 0.15                     (0.15)                    

Other Items (0.02)                    0.15                     

Tax at effective income tax rate of 25.40%(Previous year 27.34%) 2.72                    (0.29)                   

Tax on other comprehensive income (b) 0.00                     -                      

Total Tax expenses at effective tax rate of 25.40%(P.Y 27.34%) 2.72                    (0.29)                   

Deferred Tax liabilities / (assets)
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
Deferred tax liability
Unamortized borrowings cost -                      -                      -                      

Upfront EIS income (0.72)                    -                      -                      

Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting (0.16)                    -                      -                       
Other adjustments (0.14)                    

Gross deferred tax liability (1.02)                   -                      -                      
Deferred tax asset
Expected credit loss (ECL) 0.13                     0.09                     0.00
Unamortized processing fee 0.46                     0.27                     -                       
Provision for gratuity and leave availment 0.15                     0.00                     -                       
Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting 0.18                     -                      -                       
Other adjustments -                      -                      -                       
Gross deferred tax asset 0.92                    0.36                    0.00                    

Net Deferred tax liability / assets (0.10)                   0.36                    0.00                    

Deferred Tax charged to statement of profit and loss account

Particulars Profit and Loss OCI Profit and Loss OCI Profit and Loss OCI

Unamortized borrowings cost -                       -                      -                       -                       -                      

Upfront EIS income (0.72)                    -                      -                      -                       -                       -                      

Expected credit loss (ECL) 0.04                     -                      0.09                     -                       0.00                     -                      

Unamortized processing fee 0.19                     -                      0.27                     -                       -                       -                      

Provision for gratuity and leave availment 0.15                     -                      0.00                     -                       -                       -                      

Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation 0.02                     -                      -                      -                       -                       -                      

Other adjustments (0.14)                    -                      -                      -                       -                       -                      

Deferred tax charged (0.46)                   -                      0.36                     -                      0.00                     -                      

Note  - 18
Other non-financials liabilities
Statutory dues payable 0.48                     0.21                     0.00                     
Others 0.06                     0.01                     -                       

0.54                     0.22                     0.00                     

31 March 2020 01 April 201831 March 2019

The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
Accordingly, the company has recognized provision for Income Tax for the period and year ended 31 March 2020 and re-measured its deferred tax assets/liability basis the rate prescribed in
the aforesaid section and recognized the effect of change by revising the annual effective income tax rate



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
Note  - 19
Equity share capital

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
(a) Authorized share capital

45000000 (31 March 2019 : 45000000, 01 April 2018 : 1800000) Equity shares of face value ₹ 10 each                   45.00                   45.00                     1.80 
45.00                  45.00                  1.80                    

(b) Issued & subscribed equity share capital
41797400 (31 March 2019: 41797400, 01 April 2018 : 1797400) Equity Shares of face value ₹ 10 each 41.80                  41.80                  1.80                    

41.80                  41.80                  1.80                    

(c)

(d) The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
Particulars Nos. Amount
Equity share as at 01 April 2018 1797400                     1.80 
Add : Issued during the period 40000000                   40.00 
Equity share as at 31 March 2019 41797400 41.80                  
Add : Issued during the period -                                            -   
Equity share as at 31 March 2020 41797400 41.80                  

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Nos. % of holding
SORIL Infra Resources Limited 41797400 100.00%

Nos. % of holding
SORIL Infra Resources Limited 41797400 100.00%

Nos. % of holding
Rakesh Agrawal 190800 10.62%
Purushottam Agrawal 188000 10.46%
Bimla D. Agrawal 159000 8.85%
Abhishek Agrawal 135980 7.57%
Vivek Agrawal 130120 7.24%
Raj Kumar Agrawal 123800 6.89%
Varsha Agrawal 111000 6.18%
Saket Omprakash Agrawal 108520 6.04%
Sulochana Agrawal 100100 5.57%
Narottam Lal Saini 94800 5.27%
Madhu Agrawal 96400 5.36%

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Name of shareholder

The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held
to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

31 March 2020

01 April 2018
Name of shareholder

31 March 2019
Name of shareholder

Company does not have any shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. Company did not buy back any shares during
immediately preceding five years. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
Note  - 20
Other equity
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

(a) Securities premium account
Balance as at beginning of the year 74.83                  0.24                    0.24                    
Add : Addition during the year -                     75.00                  -                     
Less : Share issue expenses -                     (0.41)                   (0.00)                   
Balance as at end of the year 74.83                 74.83                 0.24                   

(b) Special reserve u/s 45IC
Balance as at beginning of the year 0.02                    0.02                    0.02                    
Add : Addition during the year 1.60                    -                     0.00                    
Balance as at end of the year 1.62                   0.02                   0.02                   

(c) Impairment reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year -                     -                     -                     
Add : Addition during the year 0.04                    -                     -                     
Balance as at end of the year 0.04                   -                     -                     

(d) Retained earning
Balance as at beginning of the year (0.69)                   0.07                    0.07                    
Add : Addition during the year 8.00                    (0.76)                   0.00                    
Less : Transfer to reserve u/s 45IC (1.60)                   -                     (0.00)                   
Less : Transfer to impairment reserve (0.04)                   -                     -                     
Balance as at end of the year 5.67                   (0.69)                  0.07                   

(e) Other comprehensive income
Balance as at beginning of the year -                     -                     -                     
Add : Addition during the year 0.00                    -                     -                     
Balance as at end of the year 0.00                   -                     -                     

Total other equity 82.16                  74.16                  0.33                   

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Security Premium

Special Reserve u/s 45IC

Impairment reserve

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As per RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/170, DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 the company has created impairment reserve for
excess of provision  between IRACP  and ECL( refer note no. 45 sub clause vi)

Special reserve as per section 45IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund, the transfer therein a sum not
less than 20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit & loss account before any dividend is declared.

b) During the previous year share issue expenses has been adjusted with securities premium in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) During the previous year the Company has issued 25000000 equity share at premium of ₹ 30 each.



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 

Note  - 21
Interest income

Particulars
Year ended         

31 March 2020
Year ended           

31 March 2019
Interest on loans at amortised cost 32.66                   0.26                     

Total                    32.66                      0.26 

Note  - 22

Dividend income
Dividend Income on mutual fund                      0.11                      0.05 

                     0.11                      0.05 

Note  - 23

Fees
Loan processing and other fee                      3.18                      0.01 
Service fee assigned loans 0.01                     -                       

                     3.19                      0.01 

Note  - 24

Net gain on derecognition on financial instruments under amortised cost category
Income on assigned loans 3.11                     -                       

                     3.11                         -   

Note  - 25
Other income
Profit on sale of units of mutual fund                      0.02                      0.02 

Interest income on income tax refund                         -                        0.00 

Liability written back                      0.49                         -   
Other income 0.01                                             -   

                     0.52                      0.02 

Note  - 26
Finance costs
(on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

Interest on borrowings (Refer note- 32) 10.40                   -                       
Interest on lease liability (Refer note- 30) 0.27                     -                       
Other Interest Expense 0.17                     0.00                     

10.84                   0.00                     

Note  - 27
Impairment on financial instruments
(on financial Asset measured at amortized cost)
ECL on loan assets (Refer note- 6) 0.15                     0.35                     

0.15                     0.35                     

Note  - 28
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 12.69                   0.16                     
Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer note- below) 0.20                     -                       
Staff welfare expenses 0.17                     0.01                     
Employee incentives -                       0.48                     
Provision for employee benefit (gratuity & compensated absences) (Refer note- below) 0.58                     0.01                     

13.64                   0.66                     



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 

1) Employee benefits (retiral)

(i) Defined contribution plan 
Provident fund

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Contribution made to employees’ provident fund organisation 0.08                     -                       
Contribution made to employees’ state insurance corporation 0.04                     -                       
Contribution to labour welfare fund 0.00                     -                       
Contribution to employees’ national pension scheme 0.08                     -                       
Total 0.20                     -                       

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

Disclosure in respect of Gratuity, Compensated Absences

2019-20
Reconciliation of liability recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of commitments (as per Actuarial valuation) 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Fair value of plan assets -                       -                       -                       -                       
Net liability in the Balance sheet (as per Actuarial valuation) 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Movement in net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Net liability as at the beginning of the year 0.00                     -                       0.01                     -                       
Amount (paid) during the year/Transfer adjustment -                       -                       -                       -                       
Net expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.23                     0.00                     0.35                     0.01                     
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions -                       -                       
Experience adjustments -                       -                       
Net liability as at the end of the year 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current service cost 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Past service cost -                       -                       -                       -                       
Interest cost 0.00                     -                       0.00                     -                       
Actuarial (gains) -                       -                       (0.01)                   -                       
Expected return on plan assets -                       -                       -                       -                       
Expenses charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.23                     0.00                     0.35                     0.01                     
Return on plan assets N.A N.A N.A N.A
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain recognised during the year -                       -                       -                       -                       
Reconciliation of defined-benefit commitments:
Commitments as at the beginning of the year 0.00                     -                       0.01                     -                       
Current service cost 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Past service cost -                       -                       -                       -                       
Interest cost 0.00                     -                       0.00                     -                       
(Paid benefits) -                       -                       -                       -                       
Actuarial (gains) -                       -                       (0.01)                   -                       
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions -                       -                       -                       -                       
Experience adjustments -                       -                       -                       -                       
Commitments as at the end of the year 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     
Reconciliation of plan assets N.A N.A N.A N.A

2019-20 2108-19 2019-20 2108-19
Discount rate 6.80% 7.71% 6.80% 7.71%
Expected return on plan assets N.A N.A N.A N.A
Expected rate of salary increase 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Mortality

The Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at predetermined rates to a registered provident fund administered by the Government of India, which invests the
funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employees make predetermined contributions to the Provident Fund. The contributions are normally based on a certain
proportion of the employee’s salary. During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of defined
contribution plans and included in “Employee benefits expense

Provision for unfunded Gratuity and Compensated Absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in 
actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 on ‘Employee
Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars
Gratuity

(Unfunded)
Compensated Absences

Compensated Absences
(Unfunded) (Unfunded)

100 % of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

100 % of IALM 
(2006 - 08)

100 % of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

The actuarial calculations used to estimate commitments and expenses in respect of unfunded Gratuity, Compensated absences are based on the following assumptions which
if changed, would affect the commitment’s size, funding requirements and expenses:

Particulars
Gratuity

100 % of IALM 
(2006 - 08)



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Gratuity

 Assumptions 
 Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
 Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.02)                   0.02                     (0.00)                   0.00                     

Gratuity

 Assumptions 
 Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
 Impact on defined benefit obligation 0.03                     (0.02)                   0.00                     (0.00)                   

Leave Encashment

 Assumptions 
 Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
 Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.03)                   0.03 (0.00)                   0.00                     

Leave Encashment

 Assumptions 
 Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
 Impact on defined benefit obligation 0.03                     (0.03)                   0.00                     (0.00)                   

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

2019-20
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.00                     0.00                     0.01                     0.00                     
Between 1 and 2 years 0.00                     -                       0.01                     0.00                     
Between 2 and 5 years 0.01                     -                       0.02                     0.00                     
Beyond 5 years 0.22                     0.00                     0.32                     0.01                     
Total expected payments 0.23                     0.00                     0.36                     0.01                     

Year ended         
31 March 2020

Year ended           
31 March 2019

Note  - 29
Other expenses
Advertisement and publicity 0.09                     -                       
Office maintenace expenses 0.77                     0.00                     
Communication costs 0.11                     0.00                     
Legal and professional charges 0.04                     0.02                     
Selling and credit verification cost 1.21                     0.32                     
Travelling and conveyance 0.12                     0.00                     
Rates & taxes expenses 0.11                     0.02                     
Printing & stationary 0.06                     0.00                     
Insurance 0.11                     -                       
Rent 0.06                     -                       
Auditor's remuneration - as auditor (refer note- below) 0.01                     0.01                     
IT expenses 0.04                     -                       
Recruitment expenses 0.23                     -                       
Other expenditure 0.02                     0.01                     

2.98                     0.38                     
Details of Auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration
Audit fees 0.01                     0.01                     
Reimbursement of expenses -                       -                       

0.01                     0.01                     

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Future salary increases 

31 March 2020

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Discount rate 

Future salary increases 

31 March 2020

Discount rate 
31 March 2019

31 March 2019

Expected payment for future years
Gratuity Compensated Absences

(Unfunded) (Unfunded)



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
Note  - 30
Leasing arrangements

Impact on transition and accounting assumptions:-

a) Impact on assessment  of lease liability as on 01 April 2019.
Amount 

Lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 Nil
Add:- contracts reassessed as lease contracts Nil
Lease liabilities as on 1 April 2019 Nil

Particulars Amount 

Short-term leases 0.06                     
Leases of low value assets -                       

f) The impact of change in accounting policy on account on adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows :
Particulars Amount 

Increase in lease liability by 3.29                     
Increase in rights of use by 3.18                     
Increase in finance cost by 0.27                     
Increase depreciation by 0.72                     

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period

i. Right-of-use assets
Balance as at 01 April 2019 -                       
Addition During the Year
Lease stated as ROU 3.82                     
Security deposits on lease reclassified as ROU 0.08                     

3.90                     
Depreciation charged for the year 0.72                     
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3.18                     

ii. Lease liability
Balance as at 01 April 2019 -                       
Addition During the Year 3.82                     
Interest on lease liability 0.27                     
Repayment of lease liability 0.80                     
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3.29                     

Maturity of lease liabilities
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:

Particulars Lease payments Interest expense
 Net present 

values  

Within 1 year 0.60                     0.28                     0.32                     
1-2 years 0.48                     0.26                     0.22                     
2-5 years 1.65                     0.61                     1.04                     
More than 5 years 1.97                     0.26                     1.71                     
Total 4.70                     1.41                     3.29                     

iii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Particulars Amount 

2020 - Leases under Ind AS 116
Interest on lease liability 0.27                     
Depreciation charged for the year 0.72                     
Expenses relating to short term lease and low-value assets (includes in rent expenses) 0.06                     
Net present value of security deposits on lease recognised as other income 0.01                     
2019 - Operating leases under Ind AS 17
Lease expenses (includes in Rent Expenses) -                       

iv. Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Particulars Amount 

Total cash outflow for Lease as per Ind AS 116 0.80                     

b) On transition to Ind AS 116 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised was 9% p.a.

Particulars 

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as
security. For leases over office buildings and other premises the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original
condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts.

The Company has leases for office building. With the exception of short-term leases and some of the  leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the 
balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

c) The Company has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating leases in existence at the date of initial application of 
Ind AS 116, being 01 April 2019

d) Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application, the Company has relied on its historic assessment as to whether 
leases were onerous immediately before the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

e) The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 

Note  - 31
Segment Reporting

Note  - 32
Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) – 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’.

a)
Relationship

(i) Related party exercising control :
Holding Company SORIL Infra Resources Limited
Fellow subsidiary of holding company Albasta Wholesale Services Limited

(ii) Key Management Personnel Mr.Vijay Kumar Agrawal, Whole Time Director (from 01 February 2019)

* With whom transactions entered during the year (significant transaction)
b) Summary of significant transactions with related parties:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Issue of equity share capital 116.80                 

Reimbursement of expenses                      0.40                      0.00 

Finance costs                      9.98                         -   

c) Outstanding balances :
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inter corporate loan taken                    83.30                         -   

Other payables 0.01                     0.00                     

Note  - 33
Earning per equity share
Earnings per equity share (EPS) as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS)-33 "Earnings per share (Refer note -3.12)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Following reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS            41,797,400 3605619
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS 8.00                     (0.76)                   
Basic earning per share (In ₹) 1.91 (2.12)                   
Diluted 
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 41797400 3605619
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS 8.00                     (0.76)                   
Diluted earning per share (In ₹) 1.91                     (2.12)                   
Nominal value of equity shares (In ₹) 10                       10                       

Particulats

Particulats

Name and Nature of Relationship with related parties

The company’s main business is financing by way of loans to MSMEs and Rural Housing Finance majorly from the Tier-II and Tier-III cities. All other activities of the
Company revolve around the main business. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per "Ind AS" 108 dealing with operating segment.

 Name of related parties 
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Note  - 34
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ins AS 7 - Statement of Cash flows 

Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Opening balance                         -   Nil Nil
Fair valuation of borrowings*                         -   Nil Nil
Proceeds from current/ non-current borrowings (including current maturities)                  259.80 Nil Nil
Repayment of current/ non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (176.50)                Nil Nil
Closing balance                    83.30 Nil Nil

Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Opening balance                         -   Nil Nil
Addition on account of new leases during the year (Refer note 30)                      3.82 Nil Nil
Interest expense                      0.27 Nil Nil
Cash flows (0.53)                   Nil Nil
Interest paid (0.27)                   Nil Nil
Closing balance                      3.29 Nil Nil

Note  - 35
Financial instruments-accounting classification and fair value measurement

A Fair value measurements
(i) Valuation principles

(ii) Valuation governance

(iii) Fair value hierarchy :

Financial assets measured at fair value
31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments at FVTPL
Investments (Mutual fund units) -                                               -                           -                           -   

Financial assets measured at fair value
31 March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments at FVTPL
Investments (Mutual fund units) 7.05                                             -                           -                        7.05 

Financial assets measured at fair value
01 April 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments at FVTPL
Investments (Mutual fund units) -                                               -                           -                           -   

Valuation techniques

Mutual fund

B Classification of Financial Assests and Financial Liabilities
Financial instruments by category

Particulars
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       -                       4.03                     
Trade receivables -                       -                       0.01                     
Loans -                       -                       198.90                 
Investments -                       -                       -                       
Other financial assets -                       -                       5.19                     
Total financial assets -                       -                       208.13                 

Financial liabilities
Trade payables -                       -                       0.54                     
Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                       -                       83.30                   
Other financial liabilities (including lease liability) -                       -                       6.43                     
Total financial liabilities -                       -                       90.27                   

Open ended mutual funds are valued at NAV declared by respective fund house as on the balance sheet date  and are classified under Level 1.

31 March 2020

*These pertain to non-cash adjustments made during the year.

 Non-current borrowings 
(including current maturities) 

The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Effective 01 April 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind AS-7, which require the entities to provide disclosure that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate change in financial liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities to meet the disclosure requirement .The adoption of
amendment did not have any impact on the financial statements.

 Lease Liability 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction, in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an, exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order
to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.

The Company’s fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate safeguards are in place
to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product, initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the Company
including the risk and finance functions. The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions.

The Company uses the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole, as explained in Note no. 3.7 
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Particulars
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       -                       1.32                     
Trade receivables -                       -                       -                       
Loans -                       -                       139.91                 
Investments 7.05                     -                       -                       
Other financial assets -                       -                       0.17                     
Total financial assets 7.05                     -                       141.40                  

Financial liabilities
Trade payables -                       -                       0.07                     
Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                       -                       -                       
Other financial liabilities -                       -                       32.51                   
Total financial liabilities -                       -                       32.58                   

Particulars
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       -                       0.02                     
Trade receivables -                       -                       0.01                     
Loans -                       -                       1.94                     
Investments 0.01                     -                       -                       
Other financial assets -                       -                       0.15                     
Total financial assets 0.01                     -                       2.12                     

Financial liabilities
Trade payables -                       -                       -                       
Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                       -                       -                       
Other financial liabilities -                       -                       0.00                     
Total financial liabilities -                       -                       0.00                     

Note  - 36
Capital

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period

Capital Management

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Net debt*                    79.27                         -   -                       
Total equity                  123.96                  115.96 2.13                     
Net debt to equity ratio                      0.64                         -   -                       

Note  - 37
Regulatory Capital
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Tier 1 - Capital 122.40                 115.58                 2.11                     
Tier 2 - Capital 1.66                     0.02                     0.02                     

124.07                 115.60                  2.13                     

Risk weightage assets 207.17                 147.15                  2.11                     
 Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio ( %) 59.08% 78.55% 99.99%
 Tier 2 capital adequacy ratio (%) 0.80% 0.01% 0.93%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings, including current year Loss. Certain adjustments are made to Ind
AS–based results and reserves, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatory capital is other Tier 2 Capital Instruments, which includes
reserve fund u/s 45 IC of RBI Act. and impairment reserve.

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the local banking
supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) of India. The adequacy of the company capital in monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

* Net debt includes Long Term Borrowings + Short Term Borrowings + current maturity of Long term borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents (Including FDR and
other liquid securities).

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic, conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and keeps healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholder value.

The management has assessed that the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised costs (cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities) represents the best estimate of fair value largely due to the short term
nature of these instruments.   

31 March 2019

01 April 2018
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Note  - 38
Financial risk management

a) Liquidity risk

Maturities analyses of assets and liabilities

31 March 2020 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years

Total

Contractual maturities of financial liability
Borrowings (including current maturities)                         -                           -                           -                      83.30                    83.30 

Trade payable                      0.54                         -                           -                           -                        0.54 
Other financial liabilities                      3.46                      0.22                      0.31                      2.43                      6.43 
Total                      4.00                      0.22                      0.31                    85.73                    90.27 

31 March 2019 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years

Total

Contractual maturities of financial liability
Borrowings (including current maturities)                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Trade payable                      0.07                         -                           -                           -                        0.07 
Other financial liabilities                    32.51                         -                           -                           -                      32.51 
Total                    32.59                         -                           -                           -                      32.58 

01 April 2018 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years

Total

Contractual maturities of financial liability
Borrowings (including current maturities)                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   

Trade payable                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Other financial liabilities                      0.00                         -                           -                           -                        0.00 
Total                      0.00                         -                           -                           -                        0.00 

b) Credit Risk
Credit Risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic
loss to the company. Company’s Credit Risk Management framework is categorized into following main components:
 
- Board and senior management oversight
- Organization structure
- Systems and procedures for identification, acceptance, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks.
 
It is the overall responsibility of the board appointed Risk Management Committee to approve the Company’s credit risk strategy and lending policies relating to credit risk
and its management. The policies are based on the Company’s overall business strategy and the same is reviewed periodically.

The Board of Directors constituted Risk Management Committee keeps an active watch on emerging risks the Company is exposed to. The Risk Management Committee
defines loan sanctioning authorities, including process of vetting by credit committees for various types/values of loans. The RMC approves credit policies, reviews regulatory
requirements, and also periodically reviews large ticket loans and overdue accounts from this pool.

The Risk Management Committee approves the ‘Credit Authority Matrix’ that defines the credit approval hierarchy and the approving authority for each group of approving
managers/ committees in the hierarchy.
 
To maintain credit discipline and to enunciate credit risk management and control process there is a separate Risk Management department independent of loan origination
function. The Risk Management department performs the function of Credit policy formulation, credit limit setting, monitoring of credit exceptions / exposures and review
/monitoring of documentation.

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to an entity arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring
unacceptable cost or losses.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and investment in mutual funds and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit line. Management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash equivalents vis-à-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and
financial liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities. 

The tables below analyze the Company’s assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The companies risk management policy is set by the Board.
The companies primary focus is to forsee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial performance. A
summary of the risks have been given below:
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Analysis of risk concentration

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Housing loan 100.77                 95.89                   
Loan against property 100.43                 45.40                   

201.20                 141.29                  

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the financial assets of the company

31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 4.03                     -                       4.03                     
Other bank balances -                       -                       -                       
Receivables 0.01                     -                       0.01                     
Investments -                       -                       -                       
Loans 199.40                 0.50                     198.90                 
Security deposit 0.27                     -                       0.27                     
Other financial assets 4.92                     -                       4.92                     

31 March 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 1.32                     -                       1.32                     
Other bank balances -                       -                       -                       
Receivables -                       -                       -                       
Investments 7.05                     -                       7.05                     
Loans 140.26                 0.35                     139.91                  
Security deposit 0.05                     -                       0.05                     
Other financial assets 0.12                     -                       0.12                     

01 April 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 0.02                     -                       0.02                     
Other bank balances -                       -                       -                       
Receivables 0.01                     -                       0.01                     
Investments 0.01                     -                       0.01                     
Loans 1.95                     0.01                     1.94                     
Security deposit -                       -                       -                       
Other financial assets 0.15                     -                       0.15                     

( c) Market Risk

Interest Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital.
Financial institutions may be exposed to Market Risk in variety of ways. Market risk exposure may be explicit in portfolios of securities / equities and instruments that are
actively traded. Conversely it may be implicit such as interest rate risk due to mismatch of loans and deposits. Besides, market risk may also arise from activities categorized as
off-balance sheet item. Therefore market risk is potential for loss resulting from adverse movement in market risk factors such as interest rates, forex rates, equity and
commodity prices.
The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk. 

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjustment within a specified period. The Company’s lending & funding
activities give rise to interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the Company’s net interest income, while a long term impact is on the
Company’s net worth since the economic value of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures are affected. While assessing interest rate risks, signals given to the
market by RBI and government departments from time to time and the financial industry’s reaction to them shall be continuously monitored.

Particulars Estimated gross 
carrying amount 

at default

Expected credit 
losses

Carrying 
amount net of 
impairment 

provision

Particulars Estimated gross 
carrying amount 

at default

Expected credit 
losses

Carrying 
amount net of 
impairment 

provision

Expected credit 
lossesEstimated gross 

carrying amount 
at default

Carrying 
amount net of 
impairment 

provision

Particulars

The Company’s concentrations of risk for loans are managed by counterparty and type of loan (i.e. Housing and Non- Housing as defined by NHB). Housing and Non
housing loans are given to both individual and corporate borrowers. The table below shows the concentration of risk by type of loan
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Interest Rate sensitivity

Borrowings
Increase in basis points +0.25%                      0.21                         -   
Decrease in basis points -0.25% (0.21)                                           -   
Advances
Increase in basis points +0.25%                      0.50                      0.35 
Decrease in basis points -0.25% (0.50)                   (0.35)                   
Investments
Increase in basis points +0.25%                         -                        0.02 
Decrease in basis points -0.25%                         -   (0.02)                   

Operational Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

Impact of COVID

Note  - 39
First-time adoption of Ind AS

(a)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company’s statement of profit and 
loss:

Basis Points Effect on
Profit/loss and
Equity for the
year 2019-20

Effect on
Profit/loss and
Equity for the
year 2018-19

Particulars

The Company does not have any instrument denominated or traded in foreign currency. Hence, such risk does not affect the company.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 01 April 2018 the date of transition to Ind AS, and as of 31
March 2019.

Impairment of financial assets

- Impairment of financial assets based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
- Determination of discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from external events. Operational risk is associated with human
error, system failures and inadequate procedures and controls. It is the risk of loss arising from the potential that inadequate information system; technology failures, breaches
in internal controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, or other operational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation problems. Operational risk exists in all
products and business activities.

Company recognizes that operational risk event types that have the potential to result in substantial losses includes Internal fraud, External fraud, employment practices and
workplace safety, clients, products and business practices, business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally execution, delivery and process
management.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use
of internal audit.

- Fair valuation of financials instruments carried at FVTPL and FVOCI

Exemptions applied

The estimates at 01 April 2018 and at 31 March 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP apart from the following
adjustments, where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation:

Estimates

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following
exemptions/exceptions:

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2020, are the first financial statements the Company and have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods
up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2020, together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was prepared as at 01 April 2018, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in
restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 01 April 2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Novel Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic declared as such by the World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020, has contributed to a significant decline and volatility 
in the global and Indian markets, and a significant decrease in economic activity. The Company has made a detailed impact assessment of this pandemic based on internal and 
external information available up to the date of approval of financial results, of its liquidity position, recoverability / carrying values of its receivables and other assets including 
financial assets. It has accordingly appropriately made provisions /impaired assets wherever required and accounted for the same in these results as per applicable accounting 
standards . The impact assessment of COVID-19 is an on-going process and the Company will continue to monitor any material changes in the future conditions.

The Company has applied the exception related impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognized and compared that to the credit risk.
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(b)
Particulars 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Equity as reported under Indian GAAP                   116.72                      2.14 
Loans
Impact on loans and advances using effective rate of interest (1.03)                                           -   
Impairment allowance (0.35)                   (0.01)                   

Others
Provisions                      0.35                      0.01 
Tax impact on above changes                      0.27                         -   

Equity as per Ind AS                   115.96                      2.14 
Balance as per IND AS                   115.96                      2.13 

(c)
Particulars 31 March 2019
Loss after tax as per previous GAAP (0.00)                   

Effective interest rate impact on loans and advance (1.03)                   
Tax impact 0.27                     

Loss after tax as per Ins AS (0.76)                   
Loss reported under Ind AS (0.76)                   

Effective interest rate on loans

Investments

Expected Credit Loss on loans & advances

Defined benefit obligations

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under Ind
AS, IBHFL has designated long term Equity investments as FVOCI investments. Ind AS requires FVOCI investments to be measured at fair value. At the date of transition
to Ind AS, difference between the instruments fair value and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been recognised as a separate component of equity, in the FVOCI reserve,
net of related deferred taxes

Under Indian GAAP, the company accounted for Short term investments in quoted bonds and debentures as investment measured at cost or market value whichever is less.
Under Ind AS, the company has classified such investments as FVTPL investments and are measured at fair value. Difference between the instruments Fair value and Indian
GAAP carrying amount has been adjusted in retained earnings/statement of Profit and los

Under the Ind AS, allowance is provided on the loans given to customers on the basis of percentage obtained by evaluating the loss of the previous years. Under Indian
GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the Guidelines on prudential norms issued by National Housing Bank. Under Ind AS,
impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company impaired its loans and advances. In addition, ECL on
off balance sheet has also been determined as per Ind AS). The differential impact has been adjusted in Retained earnings/Profit and loss during the year. Under Indian
GAAP Loans & Advances were presented net of provision for NPA and Provision against standard asset were presented under provisions. However, under Ind AS financial
assets measured at amortised cost (majorly loans) are presented net of provision for expected credit losses.

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the
entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI.

Under Indian GAAP, loan processing fees received in connection with loan portfolio is recognized upfront and credited to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, loan
processing fee is credited to profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. The unamortized portion of loan processing fee is adjusted from the loan portfolio.

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

P&L Reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2019:-

Equity Reconciliation
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Note  - 40

Repayment terms of loan taken from banks / financial institutions are as follow:
No term loan taken in the current and previous years.

Note  - 41

Commitments and Contingent liabilities
Commitments

Contingent liabilities:

Note  - 42

Asset Liability Management
Maturity Pattern of Certain items of Asset & Liabilities
For the Financial year 2019-2020

Assets

1 day 30 to 31 days (One month)** -                      Nil 2.95                     

-                      Nil 2.91                     

-                      Nil 2.87                     

-                      Nil 8.36                     

-                      Nil 15.71                   

-                      Nil 51.57                   

-                      Nil 37.98                   

83.30                   Nil 78.85                   

83.30                   Nil 201.20                 

* Advances does not include cash & bank balances and other receivables

Note  - 43

(i)

B-13.01706 NA

Over One months to 2 months
Over 2 months upto 3 months
Over 3 months to 6 months
Over 6 months to 1 year

Reserve bank of India

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

a) Estimated amount of Loans (Assets) undrawn as at year end is ₹ 1.58 Cr.  (Previous year: ₹ 3.30 Cr ).

a) Contingent liabilities is ₹ Nil as at balance sheet date (Previous year: ₹ Nil).
b) Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts at the end of reporting date.

b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) ₹ 0.02 Cr. (31 March 2019: ₹ Nil Cr.) .

Advances*
Particulars

Liabilities

Market 
Borrowings

Borrowing from 
holding 

company.

NBFC

Over 5 year

Registered as

Over 1 year to 3 year

Total

Over 3 year to 5 year

Registration No. 
If any

Date of Registration

The Company has following Registrations effective as on 31 March 2020:

As per RBI Master Direction DNBR. PD. 007/03.10. 11 9/2016-17 dated 01 September 2016, additional disclosures are required in the Annual Financial Statements as follows:

Issuing Authority

05.02.2004

Valid upto
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(ii) Template for Disclosure in Notes to Financial Statements RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20

Asset 
classification as 
per Ind AS 109

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per 

Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Net Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as per 
IRACP norms

Difference 
between Ind AS 
109 provisions 

and IRACP 
norms

-2 -3 -4 (5)=(3)-(4) -6 (7)=(4)-(6)

Stage 1 201.01                 0.45                     200.56                 0.50                     (0.05)                   
Stage 2 0.26                     0.00                     0.26                     0.00                     0.00                    

Stage 3 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Stage 3 0.03                     0.01                     0.02                     0.00                     0.01                     
Stage 3 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Stage 3 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Stage 3 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Stage 1 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Stage 2 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Stage 3 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Stage 1 201.01                 0.45                     200.56                 0.50                     (0.05)                   
Stage 2 0.26                     0.00                     0.26                     0.00                     0.00                     
Stage 3 0.03                     0.01                     0.02                     0.00                     0.01                     
Total 201.30                 0.46                    200.84                 0.50                    (0.04)                  

(iii)

(iv)

Note  - 44

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty - borrowing

Significant Counterparties Amount
% of Total 
Liabilities

SORIL Infra Resources Limited (holding Company)                    83.30 100%

#Company has no deposits during the year.

(ii) Top 10 borrowings (amount in ₹ crore and % of total borrowings)

Significant Counterparties Amount
% of Total 
Liabilities

SORIL Infra Resources Limited (holding Company)                    83.30 100%

(iii) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Name of the instrument/product Amount
% of Total 

Loans
Unsecured loan from holding company                    83.30 100%

(iv) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Standard

More than 3 years

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

-1
Performing Assets

Subtotal

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard

Subtotal

Total

No drawdown of reserves made during current year (Previous year ₹ Nil)

Doubtful - up to 1 year
1 to 3 years

Loss
Subtotal for NPA

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which are in the scope of 
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Note in accordance with RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR. NBFC (PD) CC No. 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-
Banking financial companies.

The disclosure of the Concentration of Deposits taken is not applicable since the Company is not in the business of accepting deposits being a Systematically Important Non Deposit Accepting 
NBFC.

Subtotal for doubtful



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
Note  - 45

Amount 
outstanding

 Amount 
overdue 

Amount 
outstanding

 Amount 
overdue 

Amount 
outstanding

 Amount 
overdue 

Liabilities side :

(a) Debentures : 
Secured NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Deferred credits NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(c) Term loans NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(d)  Inter-corporate  loans  and borrowing 83.30           -              -              -              -              -              
(e) Commercial paper NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(f) Public deposits NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(f) Other loans NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

As at 31 
March 2020

As at 31 
March 2019

As at 01 
April 2018

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
outstanding

Assets side :

(a) Secured 179.49         114.08         -              
(b) Unsecured 19.91           26.18           1.95             

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
   (a) Financial lease NIL NIL NIL
   (b) Operating lease NIL NIL NIL
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
  (a) Assets on hire NIL NIL NIL
  (b) Repossessed assets NIL NIL NIL
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
  (a) Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL NIL NIL
  (b) Loans other than (a) above NIL NIL NIL

4. Break -up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1.  Quoted :
  (i)  Shares : 
       (a) Equity NIL NIL NIL
       (b) Preference NIL NIL NIL
  (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL NIL
  (iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL NIL
  (iv) Government Securities NIL NIL NIL
  (v)  Others NIL NIL NIL

Information as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of the RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking financial company - Non-systemically Important Non - deposit taking
company and Deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 As at 01 April 2018

1. Loans and advances availed by the non- banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Unsecured (other than falling  within the  meaning of public 

Particulars

2. Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those included in 
(3) below] :

3. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC 
activities :



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 
2. Unquoted :
  (i)  Shares : 
       (a) Equity NIL NIL NIL
       (b) Preference NIL NIL NIL
  (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL NIL
  (iii) Units of Mutual Funds -              7.05             -              
  (iv) Government Securities NIL NIL NIL
  (v)  Others NIL NIL NIL

Non current Investment :
1.  Quoted :
  (i)  Shares : 
       (a) Equity -              -              0.01             
       (b) Preference NIL NIL NIL
  (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL NIL
  (iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL NIL
  (iv) Government Securities NIL NIL NIL
  (v)  Others NIL NIL NIL
2. Unquoted :
  (i)  Shares : 
       (a) Equity 
       (b) Preference NIL NIL NIL
  (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL NIL
  (iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL NIL
  (iv) Government Securities NIL NIL NIL
  (v)  Others NIL NIL NIL

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



INDIABULLS RURAL FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly known as Littleman Fiscal Services Private Limited]
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in ₹crores, unless otherwise stated 

Secured Unsecured  Total Secured Unsecured  Total Secured Unsecured  Total 

1. Related Parties:
    (a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
    (b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
    (c) Other related parties NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Other than related parties 179.05         19.85          198.90            113.80         26.11           139.91          NIL 1.94             1.94             
Total 179.05         19.85          198.90            113.80          26.11           139.91          NIL 1.94             1.94             

6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Category

 Market 
Value / 

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV 

 Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions) 

 Market 
Value / 

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV 

 Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions) 

 Market 
Value / 

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV 

 Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions) 

1. Related Parties:
    (a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
    (b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
    (c) Other related parties NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Other than related parties -              -              7.05             7.05             0.01             0.01             
Total -              -              7.05             7.05             0.01             0.01             

7. Other Information 
As at 31 

March 2020
As at 31 

March 2019
As at 01 

April 2018

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
outstanding

(i) Gross Non-performing assets
   (a) Related parties NIL NIL NIL
   (b) Other than related parties NIL NIL NIL
(ii) Net Non-performing Assets
   (a) Related parties NIL NIL NIL
   (b) Other than related parties NIL NIL NIL
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts NIL NIL NIL

Note  - 46

a ) There are no dues payable under section 125 of Companies Act, 2013, as at 31 March 2020, as at 31 March 2019 and as at 01 April 2018.   

Note  - 47
(i) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever applicable.
(ii) The figures have been rounded off to the nearest crore of rupees upto two decimal places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than ₹ 50,000/-.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.                       
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number : 005975N

Vikas Aggarwal Prem Prakash Mirdha Vijay Kumar Agrawal                
Partner Director Whole Time Director

(DIN : 01352748) (DIN : 08329352 )

Place : Gurugram Manish Khandelwal Chandra Shekher Joshi
Date : 11 July 2020 Chief Financial Officer                Company Secretary

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 As at 01 April 2018

Category
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

c) In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans and advances, appearing in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, have a value on
realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of the board of
directors, no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Particulars

Other Information                                                                                          

b) The Company have not entered into any derivative instruments during the year. There are no outstanding derivatives contracts as at 31 March 2020, as at 31 March 2019 
and as at 01 April 2018.   

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above 
:

As at 01 April 2018
Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions
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